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This fine Victorian courthouse, btril-tr in the style of the 
Romanesque Revival, has, as the focal point of its main facade, 
a tall square tower with elaborate^roof details. The tower 
roof is a steep hip with finial rising from a brick podium. 
Four dormers with steep gables and round arched windows pro­ 
ject from the tower hip. Other tower fenestration includes 
paired round arched windows, round arched sash windows grouped 
in pairs with stone lintels and sills and brick corbelling 
and voussoirs. The building is constructed of a dark red 
brick with Bedford limestone and terra cotta trim. The lime­ 
stone serves to contrast with the brick and the terra cotta, 
used for arches, spandrels, in entrance and gable ornaments 
and tower details, is colored to blend with the brick. Set 
into the base of the tower is the main entrance, defined by a 
wide expanse of archway cut out of a porch, one bay wide and m 
one bay deep. Side bays are defined by smaller arches. Steps 
lead up to the porch where the arch springs from brick piers. m 
Symmetrically arranged fenestration flanks the entry and tower. 
All windows are double-hung sash. Those on the first floor are 
hung in pairs and set into common round arched surrounds. They 
are topped with lunettes, with continuous labels and keystones. 
Second floor windows are paired sash in plain surrounds with 
flat stone lintels.

The building has a steep hipped roof with intersecting 
gables on the east and west and two dormers on the south 
front. Dormers have paired round arched windows with brick 
labels beneath a steep gable. Four tall brick chimneys are 
located in the four corners of the roof. The building has 
a fine architrave and dentilled cornice beneath the eaves, 
brick water table and stone inset inscribed BRADFORD COUNTY 
atop the central bay of the porch. Access to the building 
can also be gained through round arched entrances in both 
the east and west elevations. These entrances are set into 
the base of pavilions topped by the intersecting gables. On 
side elevations, fenestration is regular, all windows being 
double-hung sash with flat-topped lintels.

The building, one of the largest and finest Victorian 
structures in the state, is being prepared for restoration. 
It is at this time not in use, although it is structurally 
sound and in good condition, requirinjg^on^y, minor repairs.
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The Old Bradford County Courthouse, constructed in 1902 
at a cost of $12,500, is one of the few original courthouses 
of architectural and historical significance remaining in 
the state of Florida. It is the only public building of 
major historic value left in Bradford County.

Recognizing the importance of this structure, not only 
to the community, but to the state, the 1973 session of the 
Florida Legislature passed House Bill No. 2094 creating the 
Bradford County Board of Historical Trustees and designating 
the courthouse as an historic site.

Bradford County was created by the partitioning of New 
River County in 1861. It was named for Capt. Richard Bradford 
of Tallahassee, a Florida officer killed in the Civil War at 
the Battle of Santa Rosa Island.

Bradford County then included what is now Union County, 
and since Lake Butler had been the county seat of New River 
County prior to partitioning, it remained the first county 
seat of Bradford County. Due to construction, in the late 
1850's, of the famous Atlantic to Gulf Railroad, passing 
through Starke, this community began to outgrow Lake Butler 
and in 1874 its citizenry petitioned the County Commission to 
hold a county seat election. The election was held January 18, 
1875 and Starke was declared by the canvassing board to be the 
winner. Because of irregularities, however, Lake Butler 
citizens took the matter to court, and the election was voided 
by court order three years later. On the basis of evidence 
presented at the trial, the county seat was moved back to 
Lake Butler, and there followed a series of three more 
elections, approximately every ten years, with the county seat 
moving back and forth between Starke and Lake Butler four times

After Starke won in the last election in 1898, it was 
decided to build a new courthouse in that town. It was com­ 
pleted in May of 1902. The argument still continued between 
the two sections of the county, however, and finally to settle 
the dispute, legislation was introduced in 1921 dividing the 
county. New River was the dividing line, and the western part 
of tne county became Union County.
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Diane D. Greer, Historic Sites Specialist
ORGANIZATION DATE

Division of Archives, History & Records Mgt. June
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Department of State, The Capitol
CITY OR TOWN:

Tallahassee

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na­ 
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion 
in the National Register and certify that it has been 
evaluated according to the c-iteria and procedures set 
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended 
level of significance of this nomination is: 

National QvX^/StjUp [71 Local j7~l

^Rofoert Williams 
State Historic 

Title Preservation Officer
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The old courthouse is located in the original "downtown" 
section of Starke and is already serving some adaptive uses, 
with plans to devote a portion of it to a county museum. This 
will assist in "renewing" the old business district of Starke.

Architecturally, this is one of the finest Victorian 
buildings in the state. It is on a scale comparable with few 
others and possesses fine details associated with the 
Romanesque Revival style.
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